Customer Reference Guide Important Utility Information





In the Community to Serve®

1-800-638-3278 • www.montana-dakota.com

Be safe around power lines.



to Serve®

1-800-638-3278 montana-dakota.com

Contents

About Us	2
Natural Gas Customers	3
Electric Customers	3
How You Buy Energy	
Natural Gas	4
Electricity	4
Meters	4
Saving Money & Home Safety Tips	6
Life-Sustaining Equipment	
Public Awareness/Safety	8
Your Monthly Utility Bill	. 11
How to Read Your Utility Bill	. 13
Payment & Billing Options	. 14
Why Your Monthly Bills Vary	. 16
Why is My Utility Bill Different from My Neighbors	. 16
What to Do if You Have Trouble Paying	. 17
Connecting & Disconnecting Service	. 17
When You Want to Contact Us	. 18
Contacting the Public Service Commission/Utilities Commission	.18
Your Rights & Remedies	. 18

Contents

Welcome to Montana-Dakota

We hope this booklet will serve as a valuable reference tool for you. It might be a good idea to keep it handy - should you have questions about our services in the future.

If you should have any additional questions, please call us at 1-800-638-3278 and a knowledgeable Montana-Dakota employee will be happy to assist you further.



About Us



About Montana-Dakota Utilities Co.

You're probably familiar with the expression "A light bulb went on," meaning someone just had a good idea. Well that's what happened – quite literally – on the border between Montana and North Dakota in 1924.

Montana-Dakota Utilities Co. was created that year to serve a handful of small farm communities in the area. Since then the company has grown into a large regional energy supplier. During those years of growth, we've changed our name a few times, acquired a number of smaller companies and progressed side-byside with those we serve.

Today, we're a subsidiary of MDU Resources Group, Inc., a diversified natural resources company based in Bismarck, N.D. We provide retail natural gas and/or electric service to parts of Montana, North Dakota, South Dakota and Wyoming. Our service area covers more than 168,000 square miles (5.5 percent of the continental United States), and we serve about 384,000 customers.

Over the years, Montana-Dakota has adopted the slogan "In the Community to Serve," and we believe in those words. Our success as a company is rooted in the growth and prosperity of our communities. We're committed to help meet tomorrow's challenges and opportunities by providing affordable and reliable energy services.

Natural Gas Customers...

Montana-Dakota is committed to providing safe and reliable natural gas service to our customers. Natural gas is a clean, efficient and safe fuel that adds comfort and ease to your life. It helps heat your home, warm your showers, cook your food, dry your clothes and more. Natural gas is safe when used with proper care; as with any fuel source, it is important to follow proper safety precautions to keep your home safe.

To ensure the safe and efficient use of natural gas in your home, keep all natural gas appliances and equipment clean and properly maintained. Natural gas is a colorless, odorless, non-toxic substance. For easy detection and your safety, an odorant is added to help you identify a potential natural gas leak. The odor gives off a smell similar to rotten eggs or sulfur. If you smell natural gas in your home, leave your home immediately and call Montana-Dakota at **1-800-638-3278**.

Once a year, we enclose a scratch and sniff insert with your utility bill so you and your family can recognize the odor added to natural gas. If you would like to learn more about natural gas or have questions about its safe use, visit www.montana-dakota.com or call us.

Electric Customers...

We take pride in our record of reliable electric service. We never realize how much we depend on this silent servant until it is interrupted by a bad storm or equipment failure.

If your power should go out, find out if neighboring homes still have electric service. If they still have power, check your fuse box or circuit breaker panel. If a fuse is blown, or a circuit breaker is open, turn off the lights and appliances on the circuit. This will help prevent damage to your appliances and your electrical system as well. Then replace the fuse with the correct amperage for the circuit or turn on the breaker. If a fuse continues to blow or breaker to open, call an electrician to find and repair the problem.

When the electric outage is not confined to your home, disconnect or turn off as many electrical appliances and lights as possible. This will help protect your equipment and reduce the initial demand for electricity when the power is reconnected. Leave one light switched to the "on" position so you can tell when power is restored. Then you can reconnect appliances one at a time.

Call Montana-Dakota to report any outage not confined to your home unless you know a neighbor has already reported it.





Montana-Dakota's primary goal is to furnish reliable electric service at fair rates. But, our electric system is widespread and exposed to storms and other factors we cannot control. Although we employ the latest developments in equipment and operating methods to maintain adequate service, we cannot guarantee uninterrupted power. If you have computers and other sensitive equipment that require high grade, uninterrupted power, you should check with your equipment supplier for information on devices that will ensure the power quality you need.

Energy

How You Buy Energy...

Every time you flip a switch or turn a dial you buy energy. It's our job to bring electricity and/or natural gas to your meters, but you are responsible for how it is used inside your home. By being aware of how you use energy, and by eliminating waste, you may be able to reduce your energy bill.

Natural Gas: Your natural gas meter measures the volume of gas you use each billing period. Your bill shows the difference between your meter's present and previous readings in units called "Mcf" (an Mcf is one thousand cubic feet). Since the energy content of an Mcf of natural gas varies slightly throughout our service area, we convert the volume of gas you use to energy units called "decatherms" (a decatherm, or dk, equals one million British Thermal Units of energy). By doing this, we ensure you are billed for the amount of energy you used based on the energy content of natural gas for your locality.

Electricity: Your consumption of electricity is measured and billed in units called kilowatt-hours (kwh). The number of kwh you use each month is shown on your bill. Light bulbs can be used to help you understand kilowatt-hours. If you turn on ten 100-watt bulbs, you create a demand of 1,000 watts or one kilowatt of electricity (10 bulbs x 100 watts). If those 10 bulbs burn for one hour, you've used one kwh of electricity. If the lights burn for three hours, you have used 3 kwh. The expected demand in kilowatts is indicated on most electrical appliances.

<u>Meters:</u> Your electric and natural gas meters measure how much energy you use. Meters are accurate instruments and care must be taken to ensure they are not damaged. Tampering with a utility meter is not only a criminal offense, it is dangerous too.

Your meters are read about the same date every month. If we are unable to read your meter because of extreme weather conditions, or if the meter is inside and we cannot gain access, we may have to estimate usage on your bill that month. Any difference between our estimate and your actual usage will be corrected automatically the next time your meter is read.

After your meter is read, your bill is calculated according to the rates that have been approved by the Public Service Commission or the Public Utilities Commission of your state. Copies of these rates are available online at www.montana-dakota.com or call 1-800-638-3278 to have a copy mailed to you. When there is a change in rates, an explanation of the change is included with your utility bill.

<u>Automated Meter Reading (AMR)</u>: In most parts of the company's service territory, Montana-Dakota has installed meters equipped with AMR technology. This technology allows Montana-Dakota to collect meter read data remotely without having to physically visit and manually read the electric and/or natural gas meter. The AMR equipped meters record electric and natural gas usage logged by the meter. The meter data is sent from that module to a receiver using a radio frequency communication technology. The AMR system then collects the reads with walk by handheld receivers, mobile receivers or fixed tower collectors. The information collected is then sent to the utility billing system to produce timely and accurate bills.

How To Read Your Meter...

A meter is used to measure either the cubic feet of natural gas or the kilowatt-hours of electricity you use. Reading a meter is similar to reading a clock. Here's what to do:

Read the number as indicated by the hands on the dials. (The dials on the natural gas and electric meters are similar.) If a hand is between two numbers, read the small number, except when the hand is between 0 and 9, in which case you read the number 9.



In the illustration, dial A reads 9; dial B reads 0; dial C reads 8; and dial D reads 5. The correct reading of this meter is 9085.

The amount of energy you have used is determined by subtracting last month's meter reading from the current reading. If you have questions about how to read your natural gas or electric meter, contact us at 1-800-638-3278.

Saving Money & Home Safety Tips...

Managing your utility bill begins at home with you. There are several ways to help keep household energy costs down.

Weatherize your home: Projects can be as simple as caulking and weather stripping around windows and doors, to a major undertaking like adding attic or wall insulation.

Change your living habits: You can also save energy by reducing the temperature setting on your water heater to the "warm" position, and adjust your winter thermostat temperature down at night. Pull the drapes to minimize heat loss through windows.

Invest in energy efficient appliances and equipment: Most appliance dealers and heating and air conditioning contractors sell products that are much more energy efficient than those available just a decade ago. Insist on a high efficiency model and look for the ENERGY STAR[®] label when you make your next major appliance purchase.

Conservation Incentives: In some of the states Montana-Dakota serves, incentives are offered to customers who invest in energy conservation efforts. Programs available vary by state and energy usage type. For more information regarding the programs available visit www.montana-dakota.com or contact us.

CAUTION: Montana-Dakota fully supports energy conservation, but we feel it is important to inform you about two dangers that might result from improper energy conservation practices. We don't mean to frighten you – just inform you.

Hypothermia: Heating is the major consumer of energy in the home. To conserve energy, some people turn the heat down. This is great for healthy, active people who can just put on a sweater and feel comfortable. But, young children, people confined to a bed or chair due to illness, and the elderly may be in serious danger of accidental hypothermia.

Hypothermia ("hypo" - below, and "thermia" - temperature) is the result of the body not being able to produce enough heat. It is sometimes confused with "hyperthermia" which means abnormally high temperature.

With hypothermia, when the core body temperature drops below 94° F uncontrollable shivering may begin. As the body cools further, shivering will continue until it gets to 90° F, when it reaches the

danger area. Below this temperature, a life-threatening situation is present and, if left untreated, can result in death.

Here are some symptoms of hypothermia:

- Skin is pale and waxy. Face may be puffy and swollen.
- Trembling may occur, accompanied by chills, but not always.
- The person may feel warm.
- Speech slows and words become slurred.
- The person becomes forgetful.
- The person becomes very tired.

Since mental confusion is one of the first symptoms, the person is normally not aware of what is happening. **Hypothermia, even in early stages, needs immediate attention!** If you can't reach a doctor, take the person to a hospital immediately.

Remember...everyone is susceptible to hypothermia if the conditions are right. Pay particular attention to those that appear overly tired or cold.

The best solution to hypothermia, of course, is to prevent it from happening. Keep your home warm enough so additional layers of clothing or bedding will prevent the first chill. Your doctor is your best source of additional information on hypothermia.

Back Drafting: In our efforts to reduce heating costs, many of us have turned to woodburning fireplaces and stoves as supplementary sources of heat along with natural gas furnaces. However, many homes are often too tight to provide adequate air for the safe operation of open flame heating systems (fireplaces, wood/coal stoves, natural gas furnaces, etc.). We feel that everyone should try to conserve energy, but after you weatherize you may need to add a combustion air source to prevent back drafting.

Fireplaces require a lot of air. If there is not enough air to satisfy the requirements of a fireplace or wood stove as well as a furnace or water heater all burning at the same time, the fireplace draft can pull toxic combustion products from these gas appliances back into the living area. This condition can seriously endanger health. The products of combustion (which may contain carbon monoxide) must be continuously removed while the fireplace or stove is operating. In fact, any device that exhausts air from the home (including kitchen or bathroom exhaust fans) can contribute to the back drafting problem.

<u>To Check for Back Drafting</u>: Start a fire in the fireplace on a cold day and after a few minutes, touch the vent pipe of the furnace, water heater, or any space heater. (*Careful, they may be very hot!*) If the vent is cold, your fireplace could be creating a dangerous

back draft. Turn down the thermostats and water heater temperature controls, let the fireplace burn down and call a heating contractor.

Life-Sustaining Equipment...Please read carefully.

Anyone requiring life-sustaining equipment such as iron lungs, chest respirators and rocking beds must have an emergency standby power supply.

Life sustaining equipment includes any electrically operated support system such as tank-type respirators (iron lungs), Cuirasstype respirators (chest respirators), intermittent positive pressure respirators, hemodialysis equipment (kidney machines), mechanical nebulizers, suction machines, rocking beds, apnea monitors or other similar equipment.

If you are a landlord with tenants using such equipment, please advise them of the safety equipment requirement to have an emergency standby power supply.

Montana-Dakota does everything possible to provide reliable service. But, because of weather, mechanical failure, and other circumstances beyond our control, we cannot guarantee uninterrupted electric service.

Public Awareness/Safety...

Call Before You Dig:

Planning an outdoor home improvement project, planting a tree, digging a hole for a mailbox or installing a fence? Remember to call 811 two working days prior to any digging. The first step to any project is safety.

Calling 811 before any digging job gets your underground utility lines marked for free and helps prevent undesired consequences. Digging without calling can disrupt service to an entire neighborhood, harm you and those around you, and potentially result in fines and repair costs.

The safest way to prevent damaging an underground service line is to call 811 and have the service lines marked before you dig. But, should you damage your service line, even if only the pipe coating is damaged, call 911 and then call us at **1-800-638-3278** and have someone inspect and repair the damage immediately. **Never backfill or cover a damaged line until repairs have been made by Montana-Dakota. Damaged lines may corrode causing them to leak in the future and possibly harm your family.**

Anyone requiring life-sustaining equipment must have an emergency standby power supply.

mportant



Buried Gas Lines:

If you have a buried gas line to your garage, shop, barbecue grill, gas light or any other location, United States Department of Transportation rules effective on August 14, 1995, apply to you.

Montana-Dakota operates and maintains all gas piping through your gas meter in accordance with Federal Gas Pipeline Safety Regulations. Buried gas lines downstream of the meter are your responsibility and subject to the same inspection and maintenance requirements as similar company-owned lines. That is, they must be monitored for corrosion and leakage. If unsafe conditions are found, buried lines must be repaired or disconnected.

When excavating near buried gas piping, the piping should be located in advance and the excavation around the piping must be done by hand. Plumbing contractors and heating contractors in your area can provide locating, inspecting, new installation and repair services on your buried gas lines.

Downed Power Lines:

Storms can cause extensive damage to electrical systems. Lightning, heavy rains or snow and high winds can bring even the sturdiest poles to the ground. Storm-downed power lines should always be considered energized and dangerous. If you encounter a downed power line, stay at least six feet away. The following are a few more tips on how to stay safe and what to do if you encounter downed power lines:

- Power lines draped over highway barriers or fences can energize them for great distances. **Do not touch anything that is in contact with the wire.**
- If a power line falls on your car, stay in the car and wait for help.
- Never try to cut fallen wires.
- Consider every fallen wire dangerous.

If your encounter downed power lines report it to authorities or call us.

Overhead Power Lines:

Overhead power lines can pose a safety hazard. Whether you are working or playing, take a few seconds to look up and locate any overhead power lines in the area. Keep yourself and any tools or equipment you are using at least 10 feet away. Make sure your children play safely by keeping kites or toys in areas away from overhead power lines. Do not attempt to remove anything that has become tangled with a line. Always assume an overhead power line is energized and dangerous.

Keep your Meters Clean:

Meters are designed to withstand extreme weather conditions, but ice and snow buildup during the winter months can damage natural gas meters and pipes. It is important to inspect your natural gas meter on a regular basis and carefully clear snow and ice away from the meter. When removing snow and ice from the meter remember to not strike the meter with a snow blower, blades or shovel and do not kick your meter to break or clear ice. Remove icicles from overhead eaves and gutters to assure dripping water does not splash and freeze on the meter or vent pipes.

Heavy snows, ice falling from eaves and various other problems can cause meters to snap off customer piping and interrupt service. Snow covered meters may also cause the meter safety equipment to shut off service to your home. If your natural gas service is interrupted, for any reason contact us.

Access to Meters:

From time to time, Montana-Dakota will need access to your meter for maintenance. It is important that we have clear access to the meter(s). Dogs are the most hazardous obstacles, but not the only ones. Please avoid hanging ropes and garden hoses around the meter. Trim bushes, shrubs and large flowers so they don't completely cover the meter.

Your Monthly Utility Bill



4.71

0.03

0.74

0.33

\$17.50

5/31/19 5/1/19 4/1/19 1/30/19 1/2/19 1/2/19 11/30/18 10/20/18 8/30/18 8/30/18 8/1/19 Aug '19 81.32 0 31 TOTAL USED CURRENT READING PREVIOUS READING 40018 - 37497 = 2 521 Kwh Basic Service Charge 31 Days x \$0.247 7.66 Energy 2.521 Kwh x \$0.07862 198.20 Fuel & Purchased Power 2,440 Kwh x \$0.02458 59.98 Fuel & Purchased Power 81 Kwh x \$0.02114 1.71 Transmission Cost Rider 2,521 Kwh x \$0.00515 12.98 Infrastructure Rider 2,521 Kwh x \$0.00774 19.51 State Tax 4.5% x \$300.04 13.50 City Tax 2% x \$300.04 6.00 Total Charges \$319.54

PLEASE KEEP THIS POPTION FOR YOUR RECORDS

CTA 1.3 Dk x \$0.022

City Tax 2% x \$16.43

State Tax 4.5% x \$16.43

PLEASE RETURN THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT, MAKING SURE THE RETURN ADDRESS SHOWS IN THE ENVELOPE WINDOW

Total Charges



UTE 319.54 UTG 17.50

Has your mailing address or phone number changed? Check here and provide details on back.

ANY CUSTOMER PO BOX 999

ANY TOWN SD 12345-0001



ACCOUNT NUMBER

123 456 7890 3

PO BOX 5600 BISMARCK ND 58506-5600



DATE DUE

Write account number on check and make payable to MDU.

00123456789030000033704000000000

PAGE 1 of 2

2

s

2

NP.

9 10

16 17 24

23

20 21



Customer Service: 1-800-638-3278 • 7 a.m.-7 p.m. Monday-Friday

Call volume is generally higher on Mondays, for faster service please call Tuesday-Friday. www.montana-dakota.com

In the Community to Serve

Ways to Pay Your Bill

Online: Go to www.montana-dakota.com for our free online payment service. Once you have registered, simply log in each month to make your payment using any active U.S. checking account. It's an easy and secure way to view and/or pay your bill online 24/7. Easy-Pay: Automatically pay your bill each month by having Montana-Dakota Utilities withdra

9 preauthorized payment from your financial institution 10 business days following your bill date is shown on your bill stub. Enroll electronically by logging into your account online and comple online form.

By Phone: Our self-service automated telephone system allows you to pay your bill or deposit by Findine. Cut sense review adultate a depinite system aniws you to per you in a deposit anytime it is convenient - 24/7. To make a debit, credit card or check-by-phone payment, simply call our Customer Service number and follow the prompts to be connected with our independent service provider. A convenience fee for each transaction will apply.

Billing Terms and Definitions

The rates reflected on your bill have been approved by the Public Service Commission or Public Utilities Com in the state where service is provided. Copies of the company's current tariffs are available at www.montana tana-dakota

Basic Service Charge: A monthly or daily charge designed to recover a portion of the fixed costs incurre providing utility service regardless of how much energy is used.

Constant: A fixed value used to convert meter readings to actual energy use when certain equipment is used in the metering process such as current and potential transformers.

Cost of Gas: This charge recovers the cost of gas itself as well as other related costs Montana-Dakota incurs fro its pipeline suppliers in providing natural gas service. The cost is strictly a pass-through to customers and does no provide Montana-Dakota with a profit

CTA - Conservation Tracking Adjustment: A charge that provides funding for commission-app on program

Demand Charge: A charge designed to recover the demand or peak-related costs associated with the delivery of electric service from the generation source to your meter.

Distribution Delivery Charge or Energy Charge: A volumetric charge to recover the costs of delivering energy to your meter. This amount varies with the amount of energy used.

DDSM – Distribution Delivery Stabilization Mechanism: A charge applicable to gas service designed to adjust es due to actual temperature deviations from norm

for the over- or under-collection of distribution delivery revenues due to temperatures. This adjustment is applicable during the billing periods Nov. 1-May 1. Dk - Dekatherms: The Dk billed is reflective of the total amount of natural gas used in the billing period. The

mount of natural gas used as measured by the gas meter is converted to Dk by applying a therm factor to the measured use in order to reflect the heating value of natural gas delivered.

Important Customer Information

If you have questions regarding your bill or service, please call Montana-Dakota Customer Service FIRST at 1-800-638-3278. If you cannot pay your bill at this time, we are willing to make satisfactory payment arrangements. If your questions are not resolved after you have called Customer Service, you may contact the regulatory agency governing in the state where service is provided:

MT PSC: 1480-646-6150 or write to P.O. Box 202601, Helena, MT 59620-2601 ND PSC: Write to 600 E. Boulevard, Bismarck, ND 58505-0480

SD PUC: 1-605-773-3201

com

WY PSC: Write to 2515 Warren Ave., Suite 300, Chevenne, WY 82002

Payment Locations: Pay by cash, check or money order at one of our payment locations; there is no charge for this service. Call Customer Service or visit our website for the nearest payment locatic Payments made at a payment location are not credited to your account until they are received by Montana-Dakota Utilities. By Mail: Mail your payment along with your bill stub to MDU, P.O. Box 5600, Bismarck, ND 58506-

5600. Be sure to allow time for mailing so your payment is received by the due date Balanced Billing: This billing plan levels out your monthly bill so you can reduce fluctuations brought on by changes in the weather and the cost of energy. If interested, sign up through your account using Online Account Services at www.montana-dakota.com or contact Customer Service at 1-800-638-

Payment Due Date: Your bill is past due if not paid by the due date shown on the front of this billing Fighter of the other set of the set of the set of the other of the other set of the s that payment has been made

Fuel and Purchased Power: This charge recovers the fuel and purchased power costs the company incurs in supplying its customers with electricity. This cost is a pass-through to customers and is subject to change on a monthly basis

Tax Tracking Adj: A charge to reflect changes in Montana-Dakota's Montana state and local taxes, such as property taxes, including a true-up of taxes recovered to actual taxes paid.

Generation Rider: A charge per Kwh or Kw for certain investments in electric power generation necessary to meet the requirements of Montana-Dakota's electric service customers.

Kw - Kilowatt: The Kw billed is the peak demand (or maximum 15-minute me the billing period or the minimum Kw amount as stated in the company's tariffs. red demand) for electricity during

- Kilowatt-hour: The Kwh billed is the total amount of electricity used in the billing period. 10 Penalty: A penalty applicable to a customer operating its facilities outside the power factor range stated on mpany's tariffs

Power Supply Cost Adj: Adjustment per Kwh to reflect changes in the cost of fuel and purchased power the company incurs in supplying its customers with electricity. This adjustment is a pass-through to customers and is subject to change on an annual basis.

Renewable Resource Adj /Infrastructure Rider: A charge per Kwh for certain investments in renewable deneration

TCA - Transmission Cost Adjustment: A charge per Kwh applicable to electric service for re transmission-related expenditures and investments net of revenues received from others. The TCA is subject to change on an annual basis.

Therm Factor: The therm factor adjusts the amount of natural gas measured by the meter for the heat content and atmospheric pressure of the gas delivered to a customer's premise. This conversion ensures that all customers are billed based on the heat value of the gas during the applicable billing period.

USBC - Universal System Benefits Charge: A charge that provides funding for conservation and low-income programs.

Payments made by check or electronically that are dishonored by the bank will be assessed a returned payment fee.

When you provide a check as payment, you authorize us to use information from your che either to make a one-time electronic fund transfer from your account or to process the payment as a check transaction. When we use information from your check to make an electronic fund transfer (EFT), funds may be withdrawn from your account as soon as the same day we receive your payment. The transaction will appear on your bank statement as EFT and you will not receive a copy or an image of your check from your financial institution. Payments marked with a restrictive legend (Paid in Full, for example) will not act as an accord and satisfaction without our express prior written approval.

Save a Stamp! Receive, view and pay your bill online at www.montana-dakota.com. Moving? To avoid being billed for service you have not used, please contact us at least two business days before you want service disconnected.

3278

Has your mailing/email address or phone number changed?

Please provide details here and check the box on the front of this stub. Account No.:

Nomo

Humo.		
Mailing Address:		
City:	State: ZIP:	
Home Phone: ()	Cell Phone: ()	
Email:		

Page 2

How to Read Your Utility Bill

- 1. **Customer Information** Here you will find the name listed on the account, as well as the service address where natural gas and/or electricity is delivered.
- 2. Account Number This area contains your account number, the bill date, the amount due and the date payment is due.
- Account Summary This area provides a summary of your account: your previous balance, previous payment, current balance, total amount due and the due date of your next payment. Adjustments, if any, also will be shown here.
- 4. **Montana-Dakota Contact Information** Use the information here to contact us, to report an emergency and to get answers to all of your billing and customer service questions.
- 5. **Charge Detail** This area gives a detailed listing of natural gas and/or electric utility service charges, including your consumption, the most recent meter reading, days in the billing cycle and the applicable rate schedule. A separate section will be shown for each service.
- 6. Usage History This graph shows up to a 13-month comparison of your historical natural gas and/or electric consumption.
- 7. **Bill Remittance Stub** Return this portion of the bill to Montana-Dakota with your payment. When mailing your payment, please make sure the address on the remittance stub shows through the window on the return envelope.
- 8. Energy Assistance Donation This area allows you to donate to Energy Share or to the assistance program designated in your area. These programs assist customers in need by helping pay part of their energy costs. To make a tax-deductible contribution, simply enter the amount of the contribution on this line and add that amount to your payment.
- 9. Ways to Pay Your Bill This section provides information about the various bill-payment options available to Montana-Dakota customers.
- 10.Billing Terms and Definitions Important billing terms and definitions that are useful for understanding your bill can be found in this area.
- 11.New Address or Phone Number If your contact information has changed, please complete this section and send it to Montana-Dakota with your payment.

Utility Bill

Payment & Billing Options

Online account services: Save time, trees, postage and gasoline by switching to paperless statements and managing your account online. Our online account services will give you the **flexibility of reviewing your account information and monitoring your monthly usage history** throughout the year. Access your account 24 hours a day for account information, a usage summary, energy conservation tips and a help center. Make an online payment from your active U.S. checking account. It's an easy and secure way to view and/or pay your bill free of charge online 24/7. To sign up for online account services visit www.montana-dakota.com.

Easy-Pay (Direct Bank Payment): Our Easy-Pay plan provides you with a convenient way of paying your bill each month. Automatically pay your bill by having Montana-Dakota withdraw your preauthorized payment from your financial institution 10 business days following your bill date, which is shown on your bill stub. You will continue to receive a monthly statement showing your Easy-Pay amount and the date it will be withdrawn from your bank account. Your automatic payment will also appear on your monthly bank statement. There is no charge to enroll for this service. To enroll contact Customer Service at 1-800-638-3278 or complete the Easy-Pay enrollment form located on our website www.montana-dakota.com and return with a voided check.

Customers who have enrolled in our online account services can log in to their account and conveniently sign up through our Easy-Pay enrollment process.

Drop Boxes: Montana-Dakota has several authorized drop box locations throughout its service territory. Do not deposit cash in our payment drop boxes. Paying by personal check or money order is much more secure and makes the possibility of missing payments less likely. Please allow 5 business days for payment processing. Call 1-800-638-3278 or visit www.montana-dakota.com for a listing of drop box locations.

<u>Mail:</u> Enclose the lower portion of your bill along with a check or money order in the return envelope included with your billing statement. It is not a good idea to send cash through the mail.

Western Union Convenience Pay®: To pay your Montana-Dakota bill at an area pay station, just take your Montana-Dakota bill to a nearby Western Union Convenience Pay location. Pay your utility bill with cash or check, there is no charge for this service. It typically takes one business day for a payment at a Convenience Pay location to be processed by Montana-Dakota. A receipt will be provided to you to confirm the transaction. Find an up-to-date list of Convenience Pay locations at www.montana-dakota.com, or contact Western Union at **1-800-551-8001**.

Western Union[®] Speedpay[®] (Credit/Debit Card Payments):

Payments can be made by phone or online anytime with an electronic transfer from your checking account. Use your Credit card, debit card or electronic check through the Western Union[®] Speedpay[®] Bill Payment Service. Western Union[®] is an independent service provider and charges a fee per transaction. ATM or Debit cards with the "NYCE®", "PULSE®", or "STAR®" logo can be used for pavment. Visa[®], MasterCard[®] or Discover[®] credit cards can be used as well. Payments made after 4 p.m. Central Time will be processed the following business day.

- A credit/debit card payment can be initiated by calling 1-866-263-5185 and following the prompts. Be sure to have your 11-digit account number ready.
- Payments can be made online through the Speedpay® website (www.speedpay.com). Be sure to have your 11-digit account number ready.

Balanced Billing: Balanced billing takes the guesswork out of budgeting and levels out your monthly Montana-Dakota bill so you can reduce fluctuations brought on by changes in the weather and price of energy.

With Balanced Billing, your monthly bill is computed by taking an average of your natural gas and/or electric usage during the previous 12 months. Current energy prices are then applied to this average monthly usage to calculate the current payment due.

Balanced Billing is a free service. To learn more or enroll call 1-800-638-3278 or visit www.montana-dakota.com.

Example: The following graph is an illustration of how an actual MDU natural gas and electric customer's bill looks like on Balanced Billing - and what it would look like without balanced billing.

Gas & Electric







Gas

Why Your Monthly Bills Vary

There are many reasons why your utility bill may vary from month to month. Here are some examples:

<u>Weather</u>: Cold, windy weather forces your furnace to provide more heat to keep your home comfortable. Likewise, hot, humid summers cause your air conditioner to use more energy to cool your home.

Longer Nights: Winter months bring shorter days and longer nights, which mean you'll have more indoor activity and use more energy.

<u>Change in Lifestyle:</u> House guests, illness, new baby, and so on can mean more showers, more laundry and more cooking. Each increases energy use, even if only for a short time.

<u>Vacations</u>: Your home will probably use less energy when you're away. But, remember your refrigerator, furnace and other appliances continue to operate (and use energy) while you are gone.

<u>Appliances</u>: Adding appliances or appliances that need cleaning or repair usually use more energy.

<u>Seasonal Uses</u>: Car engine heaters that help start your car in the winter or the extra refrigerator you use to cool additional food and beverages are examples of items that could increase your bills during various times of the year.

<u>Number of Billing Days</u>: Your billing days may vary. The more days you've used energy, the higher your bill will be. Your utility bill tells you how many days your bill covers.

<u>Other Services:</u> You may have incurred a charge for some service from Montana-Dakota. These costs added to your regular charge for energy will increase the total amount of your bill.

Why is my utility bill different from my neighbor's

Housing Differences: The type of construction, size and location of a house have a lot to do with how much energy it uses. A large, well-insulated house protected from the wind may use less heating energy than a small, poorly insulated house exposed to cold winter gusts.

Differences in Occupancy: A dwelling's utility costs are also affected by its number of occupants, their ages and living habits. Since preferences in room temperatures, laundering, bathing and cooking styles differ among households, differences can be expected in the amount of energy used.

<u>Appliances</u>: The number and size of appliances found in a home and how often they are used can significantly affect energy usage, especially electricity.

Lifestyle: People who stay-at-home tend to use more energy than those who are out frequently.

What to Do if You Have Trouble Paying

Montana-Dakota is concerned when customers have difficulty paying their utility bills. If you experience trouble paying your bill on time, call us at 1-800-638-3278.

Payment Arrangements: Payment arrangements can be made to help get your payments back on schedule. The amount of each payment is based on: the amount of the unpaid balance; the customer's ability to pay; the customer's payment record; and the length of time the bill has been outstanding.

<u>Energy Assistance</u>: The federal government provides funding to each state to assist low-income households in paying their energy bills. In some areas, there are also private, charitable funds available for emergency assistance. Montana-Dakota can direct you to the agencies responsible for these programs.

<u>Weatherization Programs</u>: Assistance is available through some government agencies to weatherize eligible low-income homes. Adding insulation, caulking and weather stripping are examples of the weatherization measures available at no cost to the homeowner. The added measures not only reduce the home's heating needs, but also improve its comfort.

<u>Third Party Notice</u>: Any Montana-Dakota customer can voluntarily select another person to be notified before utility service is disconnected. This "third party" is selected by the customer and usually is a friend, relative, clergyman or government agency. The third party program is strictly confidential.

The purpose of the third party is to make sure the customer receives and understands the disconnection notice and to help take action to prevent disconnection. Montana-Dakota will start the program after receiving a request from you or another responsible person.

Connecting & Disconnecting Service...

We strive to make it as convenient as possible for you to start, stop or transfer your natural gas and/or electric service. Here are some tips to make it easier:

- Visit www.montana-dakota.com and select start service or stop or transfer service under the Customer Service tab. This will allow you to request service any time that is convenient for you. Online requests require an advance notice of at least two business days.
- Call 1-800-638-3278 and let us know the date you want service to start or stop. Please contact us as far in advance as possible.
- A request to start or stop service may require us to access your home. Arrangements will be made when you contact us.

Contact US

Montana Public Service Commission 1-800-646-6150 www.psc.mt.gov Helena, MT

North Dakota Public Service Commission 1-877-245-6685 www.psc.nd.gov Bismarck, ND

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission 1-800-332-1782 www.puc.sd.gov Pierre, SD

Wyoming Public Service Commission 1-307-777-7427 www.psc.state.wy.us Cheyenne, WY

- Requests to start or stop service during regular working hours are provided at no charge, if this service has not been previously requested in the past year. However, there is a charge if this service is performed outside of regular working hours.
- Deposits are not required for customers who have established good credit. If a deposit is required, the deposit will be returned to you (with interest) after 12 months if you have established a prompt payment record.
- If you are interested in establishing natural gas and/or electric service to a home or other building that does not currently have service, contact us at 1-800-638-3278.

When You Want to Contact Us...

Montana-Dakota has a convenient toll-free number. You can rely on knowledgeable employees to answer your questions.

For all your utility needs including emergencies, call 1-800-638-3278.

Customer Service Hours: 7 am to 7 pm, Monday through Friday, email us at customerservice@mdu.com, or visit our web site at www.montana-dakota.com.

When You Want to Contact the...

Public Service Commission/Public Utilities Commission Montana-Dakota considers it a privilege to serve you. Serving you quickly and efficiently is important to Montana-Dakota and we encourage you to contact us whenever you have a question or a problem with your utility service.

Your state's Public Service/Utilities Commission regulates Montana-Dakota and is available for consultation on utility matters. You may call the office in your area (listed to the left).

Your Rights & Remedies...

The Public Service/Utilities Commission (Commission) in each state has established rules for you and Montana-Dakota, which must be followed before your utility service may be disconnected. Montana-Dakota provides you this information to advise you of your rights and to tell you how to avoid having your natural gas and/or electric service disconnected. If you would like additional help in understanding the rules, please call us at 1-800-638-3278.

We do not like to disconnect or refuse service to a customer, but sometimes we must.

Some reasons for involuntary disconnection are:

- 1. You have not paid your bill on time. Bills are due when received and become delinquent if payment is not received by the due date shown on the bill. If you cannot pay your Montana-Dakota bill on time, please call us at 1-800-638-3278. Arrangements may be made for payment of bills before a notice of disconnection of service is necessary. (See page 17.)
- 2. It has been determined that the meter or other equipment installed by Montana-Dakota has been tampered with, there has been a diversion of services, natural gas or electricity have been utilized before the energy has passed through a meter installed by Montana-Dakota, or a condition dangerous to life and property exists on your premises.
- 3. Safety is important to Montana-Dakota, that's why we enforce building codes pertaining to installation and operation of equipment and appliances, or for use of equipment which interferes with or affects the service to other customers. You will be given reasonable opportunity to change or disconnect such equipment.
- 4. Warning notice process. Prior to your service being disconnected, Montana-Dakota will give you written notice of shut-off. This notice will inform you of the necessary action required as well as a specific date that the action needs to be completed in order to avoid the pending disconnection of service.

After being notified, you may prevent disconnection by one of the following:

- 1. Paying the delinquent bill in full any time before actual disconnection of service takes place. For payment options, please refer to page 14.
- 2. Contact us to discuss a deferred installment agreement with Montana-Dakota for payment of the delinquent bill. If you enter into a deferred installment agreement, you must pay the delinquent account on or before the date specified in accordance with the deferred installment agreement plus the current bill. If you default on the terms of the installment payment agreement, Montana-Dakota may discontinue your service. You also have the opportunity to enter into an average monthly payment plan for future service. This is called the Balance Billing payment plan. (See page 15 for more details).
- 3. If your account has been identified as past due, and payment has been processed, a notice is sent to the accounting office informing them of the payment.

Disputes

Any time you receive a service bill from Montana-Dakota which you feel is wrong, please call us at 1-800-638-3278.

You have the right to dispute your service bill before the Commission. You may choose one of two ways:

- 1. Pay the disputed bill to Montana-Dakota under protest, to prevent disconnection for non-payment. Montana-Dakota will notify the Commission of the dispute and Montana-Dakota will refund any part of the payment made under protest found by the Commission to be in error.
- 2. Request a formal hearing before the Commission on the dispute and Montana-Dakota will not disconnect service for nonpayment of the disputed portion of the bill until a final decision has been issued by the Commission.

Reconnection Process

If your service has been disconnected for non-payment of a bill, you will be required to pay a reconnection fee; make an initial or additional deposit if required; and make a satisfactory settlement for the delinquent bill and for service rendered between the last reading date and the date service was disconnected.

Know what's **below**. **Call** before you dig.

It's the Law!



In the Community to Serve®

R



In the Community to Serve®

1-800-638-3278 • www.montana-dakota.com